
Request approval to extend the term of 51 pharmacy agreements for the purpose of dispensing 
medication to Department of Mental Health clients throughout Los Angeles County.

SUBJECT

May 19, 2015

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012
 
Dear Supervisors:

APPROVAL TO EXTEND THE TERM OF 51 DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH
PHARMACY AGREEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS)
(3 VOTES)

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

1. Approve and authorize the Director of Mental Health (Director), or his designee, to prepare, sign, 
and execute the term extension amendment for 51 pharmacy agreements, substantially similar to 
Attachment I, with the pharmacy contractors listed in Attachment II, for a period of up to 12 months, 
on a month-to-month basis, beginning July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, to dispense medication 
to the Department of Mental Health (DMH) clients in Los Angeles County. The estimated annual cost 
of the 51 pharmacy agreement extensions is $5,264,026 funded by 2011 Realignment and State 
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) revenue.

2. Delegate authority to the Director, or his designee, to prepare, sign, and execute future new 
agreements with additional qualified pharmacies and amendments to existing or future new 
agreements, provided that: 1) any revision will reflect programmatic and/or policy changes; 2) your 
Board has appropriated sufficient funds for all changes and new agreements; 3) approval as to form 
by County Counsel, or his designee, is obtained prior to execution of any such amendments or new 
agreements; and 4) the Director, or his designee, notifies your Board and the Interim Chief Executive 
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Officer (CEO) of new agreements or changes in writing within 30 days after execution of each 
agreement or amendment.

3. Delegate authority to the Director, or his designee, to terminate agreements with pharmacies upon 
their request, or for those that have closed, changed ownership, or choose not to acquire or maintain 
Surescripts certified pharmacy management software for the purposes of receiving electronic 
prescriptions submitted by County prescribers. The Director, or his designee, will notify your Board of 
such terminations in writing within 30 days after execution of each termination.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

Board approval of the recommended actions will extend the term of our pharmacy agreements 
expiring on June 30, 2015, and allow DMH to execute new agreements and/or amendments as the 
need arises.

The term extension amendment will extend the agreement term up to 12 months, on a month-to-
month basis, beginning July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016. The term extension will allow DMH 
pharmacy contractors to continue dispensing medically necessary medications to DMH clients while 
DMH concludes a Request for Proposal (RFP) solicitation bid process for a Pharmacy Benefit 
Management (PBM) agreement. 

Contract negotiations with the new PBM are currently in progress and are expected to conclude in 
May 2015. Full implementation of the PBM Agreement is expected to occur four months to six 
months following Board approval and subsequent contract execution with the PBM. Once this 
occurs, the PBM will assume responsibility for administration of DMH’s prescription drug program. It 
is anticipated that the PBM will be fully implemented by January 2016. However, the term extension 
amendment may, if necessary, extend the pharmacy agreements beyond that date through June 30, 
2016, should there be any unanticipated delays with this implementation. 

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals
The recommended actions are consistent with the County's Strategic Plan Goal 3, Integrated 
Services Delivery.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The total annual estimated cost of these 51 pharmacy agreement extensions in FY 2015-16 is 
$5,264,026 funded by 2011 Realignment and State MHSA revenue and is included in FY 2015-16 
DMH Recommended Budget.  

There is no increase in net County cost associated with the above recommendations.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The term extension of the 51 pharmacy agreements, listed on Attachment II, is a critical component 
in the delivery of mental health services as prescribed medications play a vital role in the treatment 
of mental health clients. Psychiatrists in contracted and directly operated mental health programs 
write prescriptions which are filled by local pharmacies.
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The attached Amendment format has been approved as to form by County Counsel. The CEO has 
reviewed the proposed actions.

Clinical and administrative staff of DMH will continue to administer and monitor contractors' 
adherence to the agreements to ensure quality services are provided to clients. As mandated by 
your Board, DMH evaluates the performance of all contractors on an annual basis to ensure 
contractors are in compliance with all contract terms and performance standards.

CONTRACTING PROCESS

Approval of the Board letter to extend the term of the existing 51 pharmacy agreements, which will 
expire on June 30, 2015, will allow the continuation of services to Los Angeles County residents until 
the pending RFP solicitation process for a PBM concludes. Upon implementation of services by the 
new PBM, DMH will terminate its pharmacy agreements with the existing DMH network of pharmacy 
providers.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

Board approval of the term extension amendment will allow existing contractors to continue 
dispensing medication to DMH clients.

MARVIN J. SOUTHARD, D.S.W.

Director of Mental Health

Enclosures

c: Acting Executive Officer, Board of Supervisors
Interim Chief Executive Officer
County Counsel
Chairperson, Mental Health Commission

Respectfully submitted,
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